

Terms of Reference

Committees & Sub-Committees

April 2018

Contents

| 1 | General Purposes Committee | 3 |
|---|--|------|
| 2 | Planning Committee | 5 |
| 3 | Environment Sub-Committee | 7 |
| 4 | Estates Sub-Committee | . 10 |
| 5 | Management Sub-Committee | . 13 |
| 6 | Tourism and Town Promotion Sub-Committee | . 16 |
| 7 | Mayor's Charity Sub-Committee | . 19 |
| 8 | Neighbourhood Plan Steering Group | .22 |

PURPOSE

1.1 The purpose of the General Purposes Committee is to consider policy issues in relation to, and to scrutinise the operation of, all aspects of Council work which can be legally delegated by the Council.

MEMBERSHIP AND APPOINTMENT

1.2 The Committee shall consist of the whole membership of the Town Council, unless otherwise determined by the Council. These members shall be appointed by the Council in May to serve until the following May's Council meeting. Appointments to fill any casual vacancies that may arise during the year shall be made by the Council in accordance with the above principles.

CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN

1.3 The Chairman and Vice-Chairman shall be appointed by the Council in May to serve until the following May's Council meeting. Appointments to fill any casual vacancies that may arise in these posts during the year shall be made by the Council in accordance with the above. If neither the Chairman nor the Vice-Chairman are able to preside at a meeting of the Committee, the members of the Committee present shall elect a temporary Chairman for the duration of the meeting.

QUORUM

1.4 No business shall be dealt with unless at least six Councillor members of the Committee are present. If there is no quorum, all items for which the Committee would be inquorate shall be deferred until the next meeting of the Committee.

ATTENDANCE BY COUNCILLORS WHO ARE NOT MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE

- 1.5 Any member of the Council who is not a member of the Committee may attend the meeting and may speak on any item, with the permission of the Chairman in advance of the meeting. Such a member may not make or second any proposals or amendments, and may not vote.
- 1.6 The requirements of the Council's Code of Conduct will apply to all Councillors present at the meeting, whether members of the Committee or not.

ATTENDANCE BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

1.7 Meetings will normally be open to the public unless there is a specific resolution of the Committee to consider an item of business in private.

FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS

1.8 Meetings will normally be held on dates determined by the General Purposes Committee. Where changes are required to these dates, this shall be determined by the Committee. If such a decision needs to be made outside a meeting, it shall be determined by the Town Clerk following consultation with the Chairman whenever possible.

Agenda and Proceedings

1.9 The agenda shall be drawn up and circulated by the Town Clerk. The provisions of the Council's Standing Orders for Business shall apply to meetings of the Committee.

REPORTING

1.10 Decisions of the Committee shall have the status of resolutions, which shall be binding on the Council providing that the item can be legally delegated by the Council. Where an item cannot be legally delegated, decisions shall have the status of recommendations to the full Council.

FUNCTIONS

- 1.11 To consider policy issues in relation to, and to scrutinise the operation of, all aspects of Council work which can be legally delegated by the Council.
- 1.12 To appoint chairmen, vice-chairmen and members to sub-committees.
- 1.13 To appoint Council representatives to outside bodies.
- 1.14 To distribute the Council's grants budget.
- 1.15 To recommend the annual budget and precept to the Council.

RELATIONSHIP WITH OTHER COMMITTEES AND SUB-COMMITTEES

- 1.16 The General Purposes Committee shall consider and approve, as appropriate, the minutes of each of its Sub-Committees in accordance with Standing Orders.
- 1.17 The General Purposes Committee minutes shall be considered and approved, as appropriate, by the full Council in accordance with Standing Orders.
- 1.18 If a difference of opinion develops between its Sub-Committees, the General Purposes Committee shall determine how the matter will be resolved.
- 1.19 If a difference of opinion develops between Committees, the Council shall determine how the matter will be resolved.

PURPOSE

2.1 The purpose of the Planning Committee is to consider planning applications within the Town Council area and make comments to Stafford Borough appropriately, and to consider policy issues in relation to planning applications.

MEMBERSHIP AND APPOINTMENT

2.2 The Committee shall consist of the whole membership of the Town Council, unless otherwise determined by the Council. These members shall be appointed by the Council in May to serve until the following May's Council meeting. Appointments to fill any casual vacancies that may arise during the year shall be made by the Council in accordance with the above principles.

CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN

2.3 The Chairman and Vice-Chairman shall be appointed by the Council in May to serve until the following May's Council meeting. Appointments to fill any casual vacancies that may arise in these posts during the year shall be made by the Council in accordance with the above. If neither the Chairman nor the Vice-Chairman are able to preside at a meeting of the Committee, the members of the Committee present shall elect a temporary Chairman for the duration of the meeting.

QUORUM

2.4 No business shall be dealt with unless at least six Councillor members of the Committee are present. If there is no quorum, all items for which the Committee would be inquorate shall be deferred until the next meeting of the Committee.

ATTENDANCE BY COUNCILLORS WHO ARE NOT MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE

- 2.5 Any member of the Council who is not a member of the Committee may attend the meeting and may speak on any item, with the permission of the Chairman in advance of the meeting. Such a member may not make or second any proposals or amendments, and may not vote.
- 2.6 The requirements of the Council's Code of Conduct will apply to all Councillors present at the meeting, whether members of the Committee or not.

ATTENDANCE BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

2.7 Meetings will normally be open to the public unless there is a specific resolution of the Committee to consider an item of business in private.

FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS

2.8 Meetings will normally be held on dates determined by the General Purposes Committee. Where changes are required to these dates, this shall be determined by the Committee. If such a decision needs to be made outside a meeting, it shall be determined by the Town Clerk following consultation with the Chairman whenever possible.

Agenda and Proceedings

2.9 The agenda shall be drawn up and circulated by the Town Clerk. The provisions of the Council's Standing Orders for Business shall apply to meetings of the Committee.

REPORTING

2.10 Decisions of the Committee shall have the status of resolutions, which shall be binding on the Council providing that the item can be legally delegated by the Council. Where an item cannot be legally delegated, decisions shall have the status of recommendations to the full Council.

FUNCTIONS

- 2.11 To consider planning applications within the Town Council area and make comments to Stafford Borough appropriately.
- 2.12 To consider policy issues in relation to planning applications.

RELATIONSHIP WITH OTHER COMMITTEES AND SUB-COMMITTEES

- 2.13 The Planning Committee minutes shall be considered and approved, as appropriate, by the full Council in accordance with Standing Orders.
- 2.14 If a difference of opinion develops between Committees, the Council shall determine how the matter will be resolved.

3 ENVIRONMENT SUB-COMMITTEE

PURPOSE

3.1 The purpose of the Environment Sub-Committee is to consider policy issues in relation to, and to scrutinise the operation of, environmental services provided by the Town Council and to make recommendations to the General Purposes Committee accordingly.

MEMBERSHIP AND APPOINTMENT

- 3.2 The Sub-Committee shall consist of seven members drawn from the membership of the Town Council. These members shall be appointed by the General Purposes Committee in May to serve until the following May's meeting of that Committee. Appointments to fill any casual vacancies that may arise during the year shall be made by the General Purposes Committee in accordance with the above principles.
- 3.3 The Town Mayor and Chairman of the General Purposes Committee shall be exofficio members of the Sub-Committee.
- 3.4 The Sub-Committee may make recommendations to the General Purposes Committee for the co-option of non-Councillor members to the Sub-Committee due to the particular expertise they are able to offer.

CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN

3.5 The Chairman and Vice-Chairman shall be appointed by the General Purposes Committee in May to serve until the following May's meeting of that Committee. Appointments to fill any casual vacancies that may arise in these posts during the year shall be made by the General Purposes Committee in accordance with the above principles. If neither the Chairman nor the Vice-Chairman are able to preside at a meeting of the Sub-Committee, the members of the Sub-Committee present shall elect a temporary Chairman for the duration of the meeting.

QUORUM

3.6 No business shall be dealt with unless at least three Councillor members of the Sub-Committee are present. If there is no quorum, all items for which the Sub-Committee would be inquorate shall be deferred until the next meeting of the Sub-Committee.

ATTENDANCE BY COUNCILLORS WHO ARE NOT MEMBERS OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE

3.7 Any member of the Council who is not a member of the Sub-Committee may attend the meeting and may speak on any item, with the permission of the Chairman in

advance of the meeting. Such a member may not make or second any proposals or amendments, and may not vote.

3.8 The requirements of the Council's Code of Conduct will apply to all Councillors present at the meeting, whether members of the Sub-Committee or not.

ATTENDANCE BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

3.9 Meetings will normally be open to the public unless there is a specific resolution of the Sub-Committee to consider an item of business in private.

FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS

3.10 Meetings will normally be held on dates determined by the General Purposes Committee. Where changes are required to these dates, this shall be determined by the Sub-Committee. If such a decision needs to be made outside a meeting, it shall be determined by the Town Clerk following consultation with the Chairman whenever possible.

Agenda and Proceedings

3.11 The agenda shall be drawn up and circulated by the Town Clerk. The provisions of the Council's Standing Orders for Business shall apply to meetings of the Sub-Committee.

REPORTING

3.12 Decisions of the Sub-Committee shall have the status of recommendations to the General Purposes Committee. From time to time items may be specifically referred to the Sub-Committee together with delegated powers to act. In this latter case, the decisions of the Sub-Committee shall be binding on the Council.

FUNCTIONS

- 3.13 To consider matters of policy related to environmental services provided by the Town Council. Whilst the scope of these services is likely to change from time to time, at the date of approval of these terms of reference this consisted of:
 - a. The Crown Meadow
 - b. Grounds Maintenance
 - c. Allotments
- 3.14 To scrutinise the operation of the above services.
- 3.15 To recommend to the General Purposes Committee the budget required for the ongoing provision of the services under its purview, and to make recommendations for improvements or reductions in services as required to meet the needs of the Council.

3.16 To recommend to the General Purposes Committee, as part of the annual budget process, any budgeted items within its responsibility that it would specifically wish to consider and approve before spending is incurred.

- 3.17 Whilst the Sub-Committee is responsible for recommending policy related to the provision of environmental services, it should be noted that policy issues related to management, staffing and finance fall under the purview of the Management Sub-Committee, even where they relate to an environmental asset or service.
- 3.18 If a difference of opinion develops between Sub-Committees, the General Purposes Committee shall determine how the matter will be resolved.

4 ESTATES SUB-COMMITTEE

PURPOSE

4.1 The purpose of the Estates Sub-Committee is to consider policy issues in relation to, and to scrutinise the operation of, the physical building and infrastructure assets provided by the Town Council and to make recommendations to the General Purposes Committee accordingly.

MEMBERSHIP AND APPOINTMENT

- 4.2 The Sub-Committee shall consist of seven members drawn from the membership of the Town Council. These members shall be appointed by the General Purposes Committee in May to serve until the following May's meeting of that Committee. Appointments to fill any casual vacancies that may arise during the year shall be made by the General Purposes Committee in accordance with the above principles.
- 4.3 The Town Mayor and Chairman of the General Purposes Committee shall be exofficio members of the Sub-Committee.
- 4.4 The Sub-Committee may make recommendations to the General Purposes Committee for the co-option of non-Councillor members to the Sub-Committee due to the particular expertise they are able to offer.

CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN

4.5 The Chairman and Vice-Chairman shall be appointed by the General Purposes Committee in May to serve until the following May's meeting of that Committee. Appointments to fill any casual vacancies that may arise in these posts during the year shall be made by the General Purposes Committee in accordance with the above principles. If neither the Chairman nor the Vice-Chairman are able to preside at a meeting of the Sub-Committee, the members of the Sub-Committee present shall elect a temporary Chairman for the duration of the meeting.

QUORUM

4.6 No business shall be dealt with unless at least three Councillor members of the Sub-Committee are present. If there is no quorum, all items for which the Sub-Committee would be inquorate shall be deferred until the next meeting of the Sub-Committee.

ATTENDANCE BY COUNCILLORS WHO ARE NOT MEMBERS OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE

4.7 Any member of the Council who is not a member of the Sub-Committee may attend the meeting and may speak on any item, with the permission of the Chairman in

advance of the meeting. Such a member may not make or second any proposals or amendments, and may not vote.

4.8 The requirements of the Council's Code of Conduct will apply to all Councillors present at the meeting, whether members of the Sub-Committee or not.

ATTENDANCE BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

4.9 Meetings will normally be open to the public unless there is a specific resolution of the Sub-Committee to consider an item of business in private.

FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS

4.10 Meetings will normally be held on dates determined by the General Purposes Committee. Where changes are required to these dates, this shall be determined by the Sub-Committee. If such a decision needs to be made outside a meeting, it shall be determined by the Town Clerk following consultation with the Chairman whenever possible.

Agenda and Proceedings

4.11 The agenda shall be drawn up and circulated by the Town Clerk. The provisions of the Council's Standing Orders for Business shall apply to meetings of the Sub-Committee.

REPORTING

4.12 Decisions of the Sub-Committee shall have the status of recommendations to the General Purposes Committee. From time to time items may be specifically referred to the Sub-Committee together with delegated powers to act. In this latter case, the decisions of the Sub-Committee shall be binding on the Council.

FUNCTIONS

- 4.13 To consider matters of policy related to the physical building and infrastructure assets provided by the Town Council. Whilst the scope of these services is likely to change from time to time, at the date of approval of these terms of reference this consisted of:
 - a. The Frank Jordan Centre
 - b. Stone Station Community Centre
 - c. The Town Market
 - d. Car Parking
 - e. Bus Shelters and Street Furniture
 - f. The Provision of Dog and Litter Bins
- 4.14 To scrutinise the operation of the above services.

- 4.15 To recommend to the General Purposes Committee the budget required for the ongoing provision of the services under its purview, and to make recommendations for improvements or reductions in services as required to meet the needs of the Council.
- 4.16 To recommend to the General Purposes Committee, as part of the annual budget process, any budgeted items within its responsibility that it would specifically wish to consider and approve before spending is incurred.

- 4.17 Whilst the Sub-Committee is responsible for recommending policy related to the provision of the Council's physical building and infrastructure assets, it should be noted that policy issues related to management, staffing and finance fall under the purview of the Management Sub-Committee, even where they relate to an asset providing services to the public.
- 4.18 If a difference of opinion develops between Sub-Committees, the General Purposes Committee shall determine how the matter will be resolved.

5 MANAGEMENT SUB-COMMITTEE

PURPOSE

5.1 The purpose of the Management Sub-Committee is to consider policy issues in relation to, and to scrutinise the operation of, the Council's management, staffing and finance, and to make recommendations to the General Purposes Committee accordingly.

MEMBERSHIP AND APPOINTMENT

- 5.2 The Sub-Committee shall consist of seven members drawn from the membership of the Town Council and having regard to the political make-up of the Council. These members shall be appointed by the General Purposes Committee in May to serve until the following May's meeting of that Committee. Appointments to fill any casual vacancies that may arise during the year shall be made by the General Purposes Committee in accordance with the above principles.
- 5.3 The Town Mayor and Chairman of the General Purposes Committee shall be exofficio members of the Sub-Committee.
- 5.4 The Sub-Committee may make recommendations to the General Purposes Committee for the co-option of non-Councillor members to the Sub-Committee due to the particular expertise they are able to offer.

CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN

5.5 The Chairman and Vice-Chairman shall be appointed by the General Purposes Committee in May to serve until the following May's meeting of that Committee. Appointments to fill any casual vacancies that may arise in these posts during the year shall be made by the General Purposes Committee in accordance with the above principles. If neither the Chairman nor the Vice-Chairman are able to preside at a meeting of the Sub-Committee, the members of the Sub-Committee present shall elect a temporary Chairman for the duration of the meeting.

QUORUM

5.6 No business shall be dealt with unless at least three Councillor members of the Sub-Committee are present. If there is no quorum, all items for which the Sub-Committee would be inquorate shall be deferred until the next meeting of the Sub-Committee.

ATTENDANCE BY COUNCILLORS WHO ARE NOT MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE

5.7 Any member of the Council who is not a member of the Sub-Committee may attend the meeting and may speak on any item, with the permission of the Chairman in

advance of the meeting. Such a member may not make or second any proposals or amendments, and may not vote.

5.8 The requirements of the Council's Code of Conduct will apply to all Councillors present at the meeting, whether members of the Sub-Committee or not.

ATTENDANCE BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

5.9 Meetings will normally be open to the public unless there is a specific resolution of the Sub-Committee to consider an item of business in private.

FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS

5.10 Meetings will normally be held on dates determined by the General Purposes Committee. Where changes are required to these dates, this shall be determined by the Sub-Committee. If such a decision needs to be made outside a meeting, it shall be determined by the Town Clerk following consultation with the Chairman whenever possible.

Agenda and Proceedings

5.11 The agenda shall be drawn up and circulated by the Town Clerk. The provisions of the Council's Standing Orders for Business shall apply to meetings of the Sub-Committee.

REPORTING

5.12 Decisions of the Sub-Committee shall have the status of recommendations to the General Purposes Committee. From time to time items may be specifically referred to the Sub-Committee together with delegated powers to act. In this latter case, the decisions of the Sub-Committee shall be binding on the Council.

FUNCTIONS

- 5.13 To consider matters of policy related to the Council's management, staffing and finance.
- 5.14 To scrutinise these areas of operation.
- 5.15 To recommend to the General Purposes Committee the budget required for the ongoing provision of the services under its purview, and to make recommendations for improvements or reductions in services as required to meet the needs of the Council.
- 5.16 To recommend to the General Purposes Committee, as part of the annual budget process, any budgeted items within its responsibility that it would specifically wish to consider and approve before spending is incurred.

- 5.17 Whilst the other Council Sub-Committees are responsible for recommending policy related to the provision of Council services to the public, it should be noted that policy issues related to management, staffing and finance fall under the purview of this Sub-Committee, even where they relate to a service or asset under the purview of another Sub-Committee.
- 5.18 If a difference of opinion develops between Sub-Committees, the General Purposes Committee shall determine how the matter will be resolved.

Purpose

6.1 The purpose of the Tourism & Town Promotion Sub-Committee is to consider policy issues in relation to, and to scrutinise the operation of, tourism and town promotion services provided by the Town Council and to make recommendations to the General Purposes Committee accordingly.

MEMBERSHIP AND APPOINTMENT

- 6.2 The Sub-Committee shall consist of seven members drawn from the membership of the Town Council. These members shall be appointed by the General Purposes Committee in May to serve until the following May's meeting of that Committee. Appointments to fill any casual vacancies that may arise during the year shall be made by the General Purposes Committee in accordance with the above principles.
- 6.3 The Town Mayor and Chairman of the General Purposes Committee shall be exofficio members of the Sub-Committee.
- 6.4 The Sub-Committee may make recommendations to the General Purposes Committee for the co-option of non-Councillor members to the Sub-Committee due to the particular expertise they are able to offer.

CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN

6.5 The Chairman and Vice-Chairman shall be appointed by the General Purposes Committee in May to serve until the following May's meeting of that Committee. Appointments to fill any casual vacancies that may arise in these posts during the year shall be made by the General Purposes Committee in accordance with the above principles. If neither the Chairman nor the Vice-Chairman are able to preside at a meeting of the Sub-Committee, the members of the Sub-Committee present shall elect a temporary Chairman for the duration of the meeting.

QUORUM

6.6 No business shall be dealt with unless at least three Councillor members of the Sub-Committee are present. If there is no quorum, all items for which the Sub-Committee would be inquorate shall be deferred until the next meeting of the Sub-Committee.

ATTENDANCE BY COUNCILLORS WHO ARE NOT MEMBERS OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE

6.7 Any member of the Council who is not a member of the Sub-Committee may attend the meeting and may speak on any item, with the permission of the Chairman in

advance of the meeting. Such a member may not make or second any proposals or amendments, and may not vote.

6.8 The requirements of the Council's Code of Conduct will apply to all Councillors present at the meeting, whether members of the Sub-Committee or not.

ATTENDANCE BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

6.9 Meetings will normally be open to the public unless there is a specific resolution of the Sub-Committee to consider an item of business in private.

FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS

6.10 Meetings will normally be held on dates determined by the General Purposes Committee. Where changes are required to these dates, this shall be determined by the Sub-Committee. If such a decision needs to be made outside a meeting, it shall be determined by the Town Clerk following consultation with the Chairman whenever possible.

Agenda and Proceedings

6.11 The agenda shall be drawn up and circulated by the Town Clerk. The provisions of the Council's Standing Orders for Business shall apply to meetings of the Sub-Committee.

REPORTING

6.12 Decisions of the Sub-Committee shall have the status of recommendations to the General Purposes Committee. From time to time items may be specifically referred to the Sub-Committee together with delegated powers to act. In this latter case, the decisions of the Sub-Committee shall be binding on the Council.

FUNCTIONS

- 6.13 To consider matters of policy related to tourism and town promotion services provided by the Town Council. Whilst the scope of these services is likely to change from time to time, at the date of approval of these terms of reference this consisted of:
 - a. Christmas Lights
 - b. Tourism
 - c. Town Promotion
- 6.14 To scrutinise the operation of the above services.
- 6.15 To recommend to the General Purposes Committee the budget required for the ongoing provision of the services under its purview, and to make recommendations

for improvements or reductions in services as required to meet the needs of the Council.

6.16 To recommend to the General Purposes Committee, as part of the annual budget process, any budgeted items within its responsibility that it would specifically wish to consider and approve before spending is incurred.

- 6.17 Whilst the Sub-Committee is responsible for recommending policy related to the provision of tourism and town promotion services, it should be noted that policy issues related to management, staffing and finance fall under the purview of the Management Sub-Committee, even where they relate to a tourism and town promotion service.
- 6.18 If a difference of opinion develops between Sub-Committees, the General Purposes Committee shall determine how the matter will be resolved.

PURPOSE

7.1 The purpose of the Mayor's Charity Sub-Committee is to support the Town Mayor in determining appropriate charities, raising funds and distributing those funds to the chosen charities.

MEMBERSHIP AND APPOINTMENT

- 7.2 The Sub-Committee shall consist of seven members drawn from the membership of the Town Council. The Town Mayor, Deputy Town Mayor, and Town Mayor for the previous year will automatically be members of the Sub-Committee, taking up three of the seven places.
- 7.3 In the event that the previous Town Mayor is no longer a member of the Council they will not be a member of the Sub-Committee, but shall be invited to attend and take part in discussions related to the distribution of funds raised during their term of office. They will not be able to vote.
- 7.4 The balance of the Sub-Committee's members shall be appointed by the General Purposes Committee in May to serve until the following May's meeting of that Committee. Appointments to fill any casual vacancies that may arise during the year shall be made by the General Purposes Committee in accordance with the above principles.
- 7.5 For the period between the appointment of the Mayor Elect in April and the Town Mayor in May, the Mayor Elect will become an eighth member of the Sub-Committee, unless they are already a member.
- 7.6 The Chairman of the General Purposes Committee shall be an ex-officio member of the Sub-Committee.
- 7.7 The Sub-Committee may make recommendations to the General Purposes Committee for the co-option of non-Councillor members to the Sub-Committee due to the particular expertise they are able to offer.

CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN

7.8 The Sub-Committee shall be chaired by the Town Mayor. The Deputy Mayor shall be the Vice-Chairman. If neither the Chairman nor the Vice-Chairman are able to preside at a meeting of the Sub-Committee, the members of the Sub-Committee present shall elect a temporary Chairman.

QUORUM

7.9 No business shall be dealt with unless at least three Councillor members of the Sub-Committee are present. If there is no quorum, all items for which the SubCommittee would be inquorate shall be deferred until the next meeting of the Sub-Committee.

7.10 No meeting should be held without the Town Mayor present, however it is accepted that there may be times when the Town Mayor will need to declare an interest on an individual agenda item and this is reflected in these quorum arrangements.

ATTENDANCE BY COUNCILLORS WHO ARE NOT MEMBERS OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE

- 7.11 Any member of the Council who is not a member of the Sub-Committee may attend the meeting and may speak on any item, with the permission of the Chairman in advance of the meeting. Such a member may not make or second any proposals or amendments, and may not vote.
- 7.12 The requirements of the Council's Code of Conduct will apply to all Councillors present at the meeting, whether members of the Sub-Committee or not.

ATTENDANCE BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

7.13 Meetings will normally be open to the public unless there is a specific resolution of the Sub-Committee to consider an item of business in private.

FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS

7.14 There shall be a minimum of two meetings per year, to determine the incoming Town Mayor's charities for the year and to determine the distribution of funds raised during the Mayor's term of office. Other meetings will be called at times to be agreed between the Town Mayor and the Town Clerk.

Agenda and Proceedings

7.15 The agenda shall be drawn up and circulated by the Town Clerk. The provisions of the Council's Standing Orders for Business shall apply to meetings of the Sub-Committee.

REPORTING

- 7.16 The minutes of the Sub-Committee shall be reported to the General Purposes Committee.
- 7.17 The Sub-Committee shall have full delegated authority to undertake the functions listed below, providing that there is no financial or other impact on the Council outside the use of funds already accumulated by the Mayor's Charity Fund.
- 7.18 In this latter case, approval shall be required from the General Purposes Committee.

FUNCTIONS

- 7.19 To determine:
 - a. The charities to be supported by the Town Mayor during their term of office.
 - b. The events to be held to raise funds for those charities.
 - c. The distribution of funds to the supported charities.

- 7.20 The responsibilities of this Sub-Committee are unlikely to overlap with those of other Sub-Committees.
- 7.21 If a difference of opinion develops between Sub-Committees, the General Purposes Committee shall determine how the matter will be resolved.

PURPOSE

8.1 The purpose of the Neighbourhood Plan Steering Group is to oversee the preparation of the Council's Neighbourhood Plan, and to make recommendations to the General Purposes Committee accordingly.

MEMBERSHIP AND APPOINTMENT

- 8.2 The Steering Group shall consist of up to ten members drawn from the membership of the Town Council and up to five non-Councillor members. These members shall be appointed by the General Purposes Committee in May to serve until the following May's meeting of that Committee. Appointments to fill any casual vacancies that may arise during the year shall be made by the General Purposes Committee in accordance with the above principles.
- 8.3 The Town Mayor and Chairman of the General Purposes Committee shall be exofficio members of the Steering Group.

CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN

8.4 The Chairman and Vice-Chairman shall be appointed by the General Purposes Committee in May to serve until the following May's meeting of that Committee. Appointments to fill any casual vacancies that may arise in these posts during the year shall be made by the General Purposes Committee in accordance with the above principles. If neither the Chairman nor the Vice-Chairman are able to preside at a meeting of the Steering Group, the members of the Steering Group present shall elect a temporary Chairman for the duration of the meeting.

QUORUM

8.5 No business shall be dealt with unless at least five members of the Steering Group are present, at least three of which shall be Councillor members. If there is no quorum, all items for which the Steering Group would be inquorate shall be deferred until the next meeting of the Steering Group.

ATTENDANCE BY COUNCILLORS WHO ARE NOT MEMBERS OF THE STEERING GROUP

8.6 Any member of the Council who is not a member of the Steering Group may attend the meeting and may speak on any item, with the permission of the Chairman in advance of the meeting. Such a member may not make or second any proposals or amendments, and may not vote. 8.7 The requirements of the Council's Code of Conduct will apply to all Councillors and non-Councillor members present at the meeting, whether members of the Steering Group or not.

ATTENDANCE BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

8.8 Meetings will not be open to the public.

FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS

8.9 Meetings will normally be held on dates determined by the Steering Group. Where changes are required to these dates, this shall be determined by the Steering Group. If a decision on a meeting date needs to be made outside a meeting, it shall be determined by the Town Clerk following consultation with the Chairman whenever possible.

AGENDA AND PROCEEDINGS

8.10 The agenda, if any, shall be drawn up and circulated by the Town Clerk. The provisions of the Council's Standing Orders for Business shall apply to meetings of the Sub-Committee.

REPORTING

8.11 Decisions of the Steering Group shall have the status of recommendations to the General Purposes Committee.

FUNCTIONS

- 8.12 To oversee the preparation of the Council's Neighbourhood Plan, and to make recommendations to the General Purposes Committee accordingly.
- 8.13 To recommend to the General Purposes Committee the budget required for the ongoing provision of the Neighbourhood Plan.

RELATIONSHIP WITH COUNCIL SUB-COMMITTEES

- 8.14 Whilst the Steering Group is responsible for overseeing the preparation of the Council's Neighbourhood Plan, it should be noted that policy issues related to management, staffing and finance fall under the purview of the Management Sub-Committee, even where they relate to the Neighbourhood Plan.
- 8.15 If a difference of opinion develops between this Steering Group and any Council Sub-Committee, the General Purposes Committee shall determine how the matter will be resolved.